
Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety 
Briefing 
In line with advice from HM Government, the council is now holding only essential 
meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and 
councillors. These meetings are being held electronically and, unfortunately, you will 
not be able to attend them.   

However, the City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public 
involvement and input into the decision-making process. 

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Decision notices or minutes from meetings will be available as appropriate. Should you 
wish to view decisions taken meetings of the Cabinet and other Lead Member 
Briefings, they will be available for viewing on the council website - 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Monday, 27 July 2020

TIME: 9.30 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE MEETING CAN BE ACCESSED VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q
3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2
268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

Public Document Pack

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTc4YmY0ODUtMzA0Ni00ZThkLWFmZTMtY2Q3OWM0YjMyZGMy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


3a Salford City Council CCTV Policy and Code of Practice (Pages 1 - 8)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

No items

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer:
Tel No:
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\3\AI00023305\$bgmbbkpt.docx

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING FOR ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY SAFETY
ON 27.07.20

TITLE: SCC Revised CCTV Policy and Code of Practice 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Lead Member approves the City Council’s adoption of the revised CCTV Policy 
and Code of Practice (July 2020)
___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The City Council is obligated to write, adopt and publish a CCTV Policy and Code of 
Practice. Its purpose is to set out:

 The purpose of any CCTV scheme in operation.
 How the CCTV scheme is managed.
 The applicable retention period for any CCTV data collected and stored.
 The rights to privacy.
 How access to CCTV data and the release of images is handled.
 The governance arrangements in place.

Salford City Council’s previous CCTV Policy and Code of Practice was adopted in 
2018.  
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS:

Salford City Council’s previous CCTV Policy and Code of Practice was published in 
2018 following Lead Member approval. 

Whilst accurate in its contents, the 2018 CCTV Policy and Code of Practice was felt 
to be an unnecessarily lengthy document, which prohibited the ability of partners and 
members of the public to easily understand its contents. 

A revised CCTV Policy and Code of Practice was therefore drafted. At just 5 pages 
in length, its content is deemed more appropriate to its open circulation.  
It has been shared in draft form with the British Standards Inspectorate, who inspect 
Salford’s CCTV operation as part of our annual audit under BS 7958 (Closed circuit 
television (CCTV). Management and operation) and positive feedback was received.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\3\AI00023305\$bgmbbkpt.docx

It has also been shared with the City Council’s Data Protection Officer for comment 
(please see comments below).

Formal approval is sought to adopt this new CCTV Policy and Code of Practice.  
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Previous Code of Practice 
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION: No
___________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Salford Community Safety Strategy, Salford CCTV 
Strategy. 
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  N/A
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  N/A  
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: SCC Information Governance, Comments 
provided by Debbie McCarron: The shorter policy, written in plain English, is much 
more suitable for its intended audience. I’m satisfied that the Policy and the 
operational procedures for disclosing personal data are robust and compliant with 
the law.
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Stephen Kearney TEL. NO. 0161 686 5810
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards.
___________________________________________________________________

AUTHORISATION:

Approved by Assistant Director  Signature:

Date:

Page 2



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\3\AI00023305\$bgmbbkpt.docx

Approved by Strategic Director Signature:

Date:

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CCTV Policy & Code of Practice 
 
 

 
 
for 
 
 
All councillors and officers, including third party agents, 
temporary, contract staff and anyone who comes into contact 
with council information 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective Date: 01/08/2020 
 
 
 
  

Page 5



Salford City Council – CCTV Policy 

 

 

CCTV Policy v1  Page 2 of 4 

 

Introduction 

This Policy & Code of Practice applies to the closed circuit television (CCTV) surveillance scheme 
known as the Salford City Council CCTV scheme. The primary purpose of the scheme is to detect 
and deter crime & disorder, including anti-social behaviour and environmental crime.  
 
The scheme operates 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The images collected by the cameras used 
by the scheme record as much detail as possible and these images can be used to identify 
individuals.   
 
The scheme comprises of cameras located in specific external and internal locations within the 
Salford City Council area, with control, monitoring and recording facilities at a dedicated location. 
 
The following table lists the wards currently covered by the CCTV system but the plan is to cover 
the whole of the city in time. 
 

Barton Little Hulton 

Boothstown & Ellenbrook Ordsall 

Broughton Pendlebury 

Cadishead Swinton North 

Claremont Swinton South 

Eccles Walkden North 

Irlam Walkden South 

Irwell Riverside Weaste & Seedley 

Kersal Winton 

Langworthy Worsley 

 
The scheme is owned by Salford City Council. The council is the Data Controller and is responsible 
for the management, administration and security of the system and will ensure the protection of 
individual’s privacy and the public by complying with the Surveillance Camera Commissioner’s 
CCTV Code of Practice and legislation relating to the use of CCTV.  
 
The scheme provides surveillance of the public areas within the city of Salford. Signs are used to 
indicate CCTV coverage. The signs are prominently placed and clearly visible, and state the 
organisation responsible for the scheme, the purposes of the scheme and a contact telephone 
number.  
 
All recorded material is owned by Salford City Council and is subject to the statutory conditions of 
data protection legislation and the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). Use the 
following link for more information about RIPA: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/23/pdfs/ukpga_20000023_en.pdf 
 

Purpose of the scheme 

The objectives for using CCTV within Salford are as follows: 

• To reassure the public and reduce the fear of crime.  

• To reduce and prevent crime by deterring potential offenders.  

• To assist the police in gathering evidence for the detection of crime.  

  

Page 6

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/23/pdfs/ukpga_20000023_en.pdf


Salford City Council – CCTV Policy 

 

 

CCTV Policy v1  Page 3 of 4 

 

Scheme Management 

An assessment is carried out prior to the installation of cameras to ensure the siting is in 
compliance with legislation and the Surveillance Camera Commissioner’s CCTV Code of Practice.  
The assessment will include consultation will residents where necessary. 
 
The CCTV scheme is operated fairly, within the law and only for the purposes for which it is has 
been registered with the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO). The ICO registration number is:  
Z7069357.  
 
The council has a responsibility to ensure the system is operated in accordance with this policy at 
all times. The CCTV Manager will ensure that operators carry out their duties in an efficient and 
responsible manner, in accordance with the objectives of the scheme and in compliance with 
Health and Safety Regulations. 
 
In their absence, the CCTV Manager will delegate authority to appropriately trained operators, to 
ensure a consistent service is delivered. 
 
The scheme is operated by trained, authorised, vetted personnel, with due regard for the privacy of 
the individual. 
 
Access to the CCTV control room is controlled and restricted to authorised officers.  Visitors are by 
prior arrangement only and are required to sign a visitors log and declaration of confidentiality. 
 

Retention Period 

Digital recordings are kept for 31 days, after which they are irretrievably overwritten.  Images 
requested for release are saved separately and stored securely for a minimum of 12 months. 
 

Rights of Privacy 

Salford City Council and its partners recognise and support the individual’s right to privacy. In 
operating the scheme, the council will consider the wider human rights issues and in particular the 
implications of the European Convention on Human Rights, Article 8 (the right to respect for private 
and family life). Use the following link for more information about the Human Rights Act: 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents 
 

Releasing Images  

If you wish to exercise any of your rights under the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), 
please see the council’s website for further details: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/data-protection-legislation/ 
 
Solicitors, insurers or other bodies acting on behalf of their clients may apply for CCTV footage, 
where disclosure of the data meets one of the following conditions as defined in the Data 
Protection Act 2018:  
 

(a) is necessary for the purpose of, or in connection with, legal proceedings (including 
prospective legal proceedings), 

(b) is necessary for the purpose of obtaining legal advice 
(c) is otherwise necessary for the purposes of establishing, exercising or defending legal 

rights, to the extent that the application of those provisions would prevent the controller 
from making the disclosure. 

 
Footage can be provided, subject to receipt of a compliant written request and fee, chargeable only 
where footage is captured. 
 

Page 7

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/data-protection-legislation/


Salford City Council – CCTV Policy 

 

 

CCTV Policy v1  Page 4 of 4 

 

Note: Footage may not be provided if it may be relevant to a criminal prosecution or ongoing 
investigation where disclosure under such circumstances may prejudice future legal action. 
 
Please see the council’s website for further details: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/crime-reduction-and-emergencies/cctv/ 
 
We aim to respond in writing within five working days of receipt.  
 
We may disclose images to 3rd party organisations, such as the police, for the prevention and 
detection of crime, subject to valid requests.  Such requests are formally documented by the 
council and kept for a minimum of 5 years. 
 
The authority to release images to 3rd party organisations, including the police, will be delegated to 
an operator when the CCTV Manager is unavailable. 
 

Scheme Governance 

The CCTV Manager continually monitors the council’s CCTV scheme and undertakes regular 
reviews of the documented procedures to ensure it remains fit for purpose and operates within the 
law. The council’s Head of Community Safety oversees the scheme and reports to the Lead 
Member for Community Safety. 
 
The scheme is annually inspected by the council’s internal audit team and by a 3rd party, 
independent inspectorate. 
 
The CCTV Manager is accountable to Salford City Council and shall report any matter affecting the 
operation of the system, including any breach or suspected breach of the policy, procedural 
instructions, security of data or confidentially, to the Head of Community Safety. 
 
A member of the public wishing to make a complaint about the system may do so through Salford 
City Council's online complaints procedure via the following link: 
https://contactus.salford.gov.uk/?formtype=CCC 
 
 
 

Page 8

https://www.salford.gov.uk/crime-reduction-and-emergencies/cctv/
https://contactus.salford.gov.uk/?formtype=CCC

	Agenda
	3a Salford City Council CCTV Policy and Code of Practice
	03aii CCTV Policy


